
March 2, 2016 
Madras Redevelopment Commission Meeting  

An Equal Opportunity Provider 
Page 1 of 2 

 

Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 

125 SW “E” Street     Madras, OR  97741 
 Phone: 541-475-2344    Fax: 541-475-7061 

 
 

  
Agenda 

 
City Hall                    March 2, 2016 
Council Chambers        5:30 P.M.  
           
            
 
1. Call to Order 

 
 

2. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Adoption of Agenda 
B. November 14, 2015 MRC Meeting Minutes 
C. December 9, 2015 MRC Meeting Minutes 
D. January 20, 2016 MRC Meeting Minutes 
E. Approval of March 2016 Vouchers 

 
  

3. Visitors Comments: 
 
 

4. Change in the Style of Minutes 
 

Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director 
Michele Quinn, Administrative Assistant to Public Works & Community 
Development Directors 
 

 
5. MRC Annual ORS 457.460 Report, Detailing the Financial Activity of the Urban Renewal 

District 
 
  Brandie McNamee, Finance Director 
 
 
6. MRC Fund Balance Presentation 
 

Brandie McNamee, Finance Director 
 
 

7. Authorization of Intent to Proceed with Purchasing Flowers from Fessler Nursery and 
Brackets for Light Poles from North Coast Electric Company for the US Highway 97/J 
Street Decorative Light Poles 

 
Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director 



March 2, 2016 
Madras Redevelopment Commission Meeting  

An Equal Opportunity Provider 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

8. Consideration of MRC and David Potter Urban Renewal Line of Credit Loan Agreement 
 

Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director 
 
 

9. Discussion on Contract Services for Commercial Development Recruitment 
 

Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director 
 
 

10. Additional Discussion 
 
 
11. Adjourn 
  
 
   
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the above referenced meeting; however, the agenda does not limit the ability of the 
Madras Redevelopment Commission to consider additional subjects.  Meetings are subject to 
cancellation without notice. This meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited 
to attend.  This is an open meeting under Oregon Revised Statutes, not a community forum; 
audience participation is at the discretion of the Madras Redevelopment Commission.  Anyone 
wishing to address the Commission will need to register prior to the meeting.  The meeting 
will be audio taped; minutes of this and all public meetings are available for review at the Madras 
City Hall.  The meeting place is handicapped accessible; those needing assistance please 
contact the City of Madras Community Development two (2) days in advance of the meeting. 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 1 of 8 

City of Madras 
Madras Redevelopment Commission 

Special Meeting Minutes 
November 4, 2015 

 
 
 
 
I. Call to Order 
 

The Madras Redevelopment Commission meeting was called to order by Chair, 
Doug Lofting at 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday November 4, 2015, 2015 in the Madras 
City Council Chambers. 

 
Members in Attendance: 
Chair Doug Lofting 
Commissioner Chuck Schmidt 
Commissioner Royce Embanks 
Commissioner Don Reeder 
Commissioner Tom Brown 
Commissioner Blanca Reynoso 
 
Members Absent Were: 
Commissioner Doeshia Jacobs 
There are two Membership vacancies.  
 
Staff Members in Attendance: 
Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director  
Gus Burril, City Administrator  
Brandie McNamee, Finance Director  
Michele Quinn, Community Development Administrative Assistant  
 
Visitors 
Lorelei Juntunen, EcoNorthwest 
Emily Picha, EcoNorthwest 
Gary Boyd 

 
II. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Adoption of Agenda 
 
B. Approval of Minutes 
 
 1. October 21, 2015 MRC Meeting Minutes 
 2. Approval of October 2015 Vouchers 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIR TOM BROWN TO APPROVE THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AS AMMENDED.  THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER ROYCE 
EMBANKS AND PASSED UNANMOUSLY. 
 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 2 of 8 

III. Visitor Comments 
 
IV. Urban Revitalization Action Plan Update 

Community Development Director Nicholas Snead the objective for tonight is to 
summarize the intense work that our consultants and staff have completed over the 
last three days. Tonight we want to report on that work and we also want to get your 
feedback. Remember the next time you see Lorelei and the team will be in 
December, so in the interim they will be writing the plan. So tonight is an important 
night to understand the feedback and provide guidance to the team. So when they 
leave, they understanding of what you would like to see in the plan.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen we are at a pivot point in this process right now where we have 
gathered the majority of the information that we are going to gather, and have done 
the majority of the analysis that we are going to complete. We are now trying to 
make sense of it we have taken a crack at that over the last twenty four hours or so, 
because the first part of this trip was gathering information. I am going to do a very 
quick overview of the progress report and run through some of the findings from 
that. We are going to summarize the themes we have heard from outreach we have 
completed. This includes interviews with Stakeholders, Advisory Committee 
meeting, Open House and a Focus Group. We have also been doing some research 
on commercial development opportunities. We have started to put all of that 
together into a decision making framework for you so we can get some feedback on. 
That goes all the way from high level what are the outcomes that we want to see on 
the ground in ten to fifteen years, down to what are the specific projects that we 
should be investing in.   
 
We are going to be back in front of you in December and we will have a draft of the 
plan at that point. We will expect to have some feedback from you at that point. 
Then in January we will be back with a plan for adoption. The progress report 
provides the detail of the work that we have done to understand the successes that 
you have to date in your Urban Renewal Area and the places where there are still 
projects that need to be completed. We have taken out those projects that have not 
been completed and fed them into the decision making framework for the next 
phase.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen went over the revenue for the Madras Redevelopment Commission 
explaining where the revenue is coming from. She then showed the Commission the 
expense category including the contribution to City Hall, debt service, administrative 
costs, and contingency. She showed the payments being made and the revenues 
are higher than the expenses and there will be a carry over into the next fiscal year. 
She explained looking into 2016-2017 we are currently predicting a revenue 
increase. There are changes in the expense side payments going to the Madras 
Cinema 5 will be complete, but you do start making payments on the line of credit 
next year.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen explained the maximum indebtedness with the Madras 
Redevelopment Commission. The Urban Renewal Area set the maximum 
indebtedness at fourteen million in 2002. You have spent a portion of that and have 
close to ten million remaining. Maximum indebtedness is not a challenge you have 
plenty of that for investing in projects. The challenge will be making sure there are 
tax increment finance revenues that are sufficient to be able to access that 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 3 of 8 

maximum indebtedness. The implication of all of that work that we did looking at the 
projects that have been completed, and those that have not, and coming to 
understand the financial situation. Really does suggest a need for focus on tax 
increment finance and new development. This is a way to represent the public role 
in development.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen went over the development feasibility spectrum and the cost of 
construction relative to the revenues that will come off of the construction. She went 
over the public role and how it is different at every point. She talked about 
completed foundational activities including infrastructure, north and south entrances, 
making sure there are connections with sidewalks. You are making sure you have a 
vision in place and you are supporting existing businesses. Lorelei explained the 
change of category where we are trying to make the kind of investments that will 
catalyze new private development. Lorelei explained several different types of 
projects.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen went over the findings from the outreach they talked with property 
owners, developers, community members, stakeholders, overlapping taxing district, 
and we completed a focus group with representatives of the agricultural community. 
We also had input from the advisory committee and the open house.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead can you spend a few moments 
and talk about the conversation with the County. It is an important understanding to 
have because we have had some concerns from the other taxing districts. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen taxing districts are very important stakeholders in urban renewal 
because the tax increment that flows to the urban renewal area is not flowing to 
them. So we felt that it was extremely important to reach out to them and understand 
their perspective. The Fire District, the Library District, and COCC we met with them 
this afternoon. It was a very positive conversation they were very supportive, we 
shared with them a lot of the material that we will be sharing with you. They were 
supportive of the direction that this was headed and had some good ideas about 
where we could add in projects that would help them as well. The conversation with 
the County was also fairly cordial they understand what we are doing here were 
pleased to see the focus on tax increment generation. Overall they were glad we 
reached out to them and glad that it was part of this process.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting did you also reach out to the School District?  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead we invited them to the meeting 
this afternoon Superintendent Molitor told me he was not able to attend. He was 
going to have his HR Director attend but he for reasons that I’m not aware of he is 
not here this afternoon.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen as you can imagine with talking to that many diverse voices there 
were a lot of opinions. This is definitely a high level summary of the themes that we 
have extracted from it. We had specific questions around retail needs what are the 
kinds of businesses that you would like to see in downtown. General merchandise, a 
Brewery, an Outdoor gear/rentals that category really came to the top. We heard a 
lot of focus on trying to identify development opportunities and to remove blight. We 
heard a lot about the City’s processes that the city has in place to support 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 4 of 8 

development. We heard a lot about SDC’s about how high they were and we heard 
about how the process not feeling transparent and feeling like it was changing. We 
heard that from quite a number of people we heard that from people that had 
experienced it firsthand. We also heard from people that said they heard from 
people talking that this is a challenge so you should look into it. There were a 
number of folks that talked about infrastructure specifically sidewalks that had 
breaks and challenges in them and about the appearance of downtown. Just 
wanting it to be cleaned up and spruced up and feel like a safer and nicer place. A 
lot of folks talked about the perception of Madras is not positive. A lot of people feel 
like Madras is the ugly stepchild of Redmond and Bend. That relates in part to the 
quality of the schools or the perception of the quality of the schools. We did hear a 
lot of people talking about the fact that they had their kids in the schools and had 
great experience with it. With the test scores being poor and the perception is poor 
that creates challenges for attracting new people to live in the community. So that 
perception of both downtown and the city as a whole as well as of the schools is 
something that we heard across the board. If there was a way for this plan to focus 
on changing that, that it would be helpful.  
 
Then we asked people what do you like about Madras what makes it unique? Some 
of the themes that came out there were its multicultural. It is multicultural in no other 
communities are because of the mix of demographics that happen to be in this area. 
It has a small town feel people like that; it has a lot of developable land. Importantly 
it has serviced with infrastructure and utilities ready to go developable land. For 
residential development that is a really important piece you already have that land 
inside of your urban growth boundary. You have connections with Highway 97, 
Highway 26, you have the airport, you have the railroad all of that coming together 
creates an opportunity. You are sitting at a crossroad and that is different from 
Redmond or Prineville or from Bend. The feeling that anyone can fit in here and it is 
a welcoming place and people have real conversations and interact with each other.  
 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee the Farmers focus group had a huge theme on 
that there is this perception that the town is dirty and full of weeds. So bathrooms 
are dirty, Sahalee Park bathrooms are dirty. These are farmers they really pay 
attention to the weeds so they really wanted to focus on just because you don’t have 
money doesn’t mean you can’t clean it up. 
 
Chair Doug Lofting we hear it a lot about Madras having a need to be cleaned up. I 
think that everyone here at the table would agree with that. We have great 
ordinances we need to be stricter with them and probably enact a couple more. One 
being on our store fronts through our corridor the windows need to be open so we 
can view what is inside. We have had a lot of buildings that were vacant get filled 
and they were filled with non-profits. The SDC’s perception you need to work on that 
for us do an analysis of our sister cities around us and what the SDC’s are. I have 
built a large building in the last ten years I can sit here and truthfully tell you it went 
very well. I felt that honestly the price of land what we paid for it as well the SDC’s 
were in line and fair. Our schools the perceptions I don’t know personally if the 
schools are as bad as what some tell me they are. A lot of people that have chosen 
to live here have chosen to have their children educated in other places.  
 
Commissioner Tom Brown I think one thing for us to think about we run under a 
complaint driven code enforcement. At the main street conference the Dalles in 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 5 of 8 

particular they use proactive code enforcement. A good example is the container 
down at the hotel that had garbage flowing out of it for weeks on end. The Police 
drove by it, All of City staff drove by it, all of us drove by it, say something. Going 
away from the complaint driven to proactive to where everybody gets involved in it I 
think would help with the lots.   
 
Lorelei Juntunen those are all really great ideas we will make sure that those are 
captured in a little bit when we are talking about specific projects.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting for us to be successful we are going to need the public to 
support us and guide us. 
 
Emily Picha so we spent some time thinking about if you want development who is 
going to use that development. What would be the types of things that each of your 
market segments might need. So we broke down the market segments in to these 
four types’ residents, employees, visitors that are using madras as a central hub, 
and visitors that are traveling through to somewhere else. We thought about what 
everyone needs and some opportunities or approach to attracting those different 
segments. With the retail needs I think it is important to think about the seasonality 
of retail.  
 
Emily Picha went over the retail leakage and the number of people who travel 
through Madras with the MRC.  
 
Emily Picha we took everything that we heard and compiled it into this very drafty 
vision that I think captures a lot of the themes. If you were to fast-forward twenty 
years what would downtown Madras area feel like. We are trying to capture here the 
mix of businesses, a bustling hub, cultural amenities reflecting the diversity of the 
area, and the quality of life. I think this is something that is a work in progress and 
we would appreciate your thoughts on it.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead so maybe what we are looking 
for right now is any red flags or something wrong with it.  
 
Joe Krenowicz when you talk about investment we don’t talk about employment in 
that vision.  
 
The Commission talked about the Madras Airport being an economic generator in 
the future. The amount of people that fly in to go fishing and do other activities 
around Madras and  a lot of the people that fly in stay at Inn of the Cross Keys. 
People that come in are impressed with the area the industrial properties that are 
available. The type of work force that Madras can provide and the schools that are 
available.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen a lot of the issues that you are bringing up around work force 
development and industrial growth and employment. Are really important and are very 
integral to having a successful downtown but would typically be addressed through and 
economic development strategy that looks more broadly than just at downtown 
development. We have heard this theme people in Madras are making these 
connections and we will need to figure out how to address that in the plan. In a way that 
respects that interconnectedness but still focuses on projects that are downtown 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 6 of 8 

specific. So as your having these thoughts keep that in mind and help us to brainstorm 
ways we can operationalize these issues as projects in this plan. 
 
Commissioner Don Reeder Doug brought up a good point in regards to what may be 
needed for and educational workforce, what educational workforce and to collaborate 
with the Community College and to provide the Community College some information.  
   
The Commission discussed developing the west side of the property by Cross Keys 
and adding a restaurant available. There was also a discussion on having a 
Community event reader board so people know what is going on around town.  

 
Lorelei Juntunen it sounds like at least at the high level and without a lot more time 
to digest it, it seems like this vision is headed in the right direction. For this particular 
plan update we wanted to narrow in on a more specific objective. A single statement 
of what we are trying to accomplish in the near term through the actions that are 
identified in the plan. We have built this statement off of the guiding principles that 
the city included in the solicitation that went out to attract consultants to respond to 
the RFP. There were five or six bullets there and we combined them into this 
statement support catalytic retail and other commercial developments.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead from a staff perspective and I 
would also think from a Commission perspective, when you see the draft of the plan 
in December this is what you need to be measuring that the plan does. So when I 
look at the plan I am going to make sure there are certain things in it that are 
consistent with this objective. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen now we are starting to get into that decision making framework that 
I talked about at the beginning. Starting with who is it that is doing the acting in the 
action plan. It is the MRC and it is the tax increment finance dollars, but especially 
given the near term limitation on availability of Tax increment dollars. We are seeing 
a real importance in connecting with partners, and those are partners that would not 
just dollars to the table but also the ideas and energy. The City is a partner, 
overlapping taxing districts are partners, and businesses are partners and bringing 
all of those resources together to move forward to support these projects through to 
completion. As we get into specific actions MRC will probably be the lead on a lot of 
them but there may be projects that are fantastic ideas that MRC is not the lead. We 
think we are looking for a twenty year vision for the future. Changing and 
transforming downtown Madras isn’t something that is going to happen overnight. In 
terms of the when we are seeing a serious need for focus on TIF generation in the 
near term because we need to generate the revenues in order to be able to invest.  
 
The Commission discussed the representation from the Hispanic community and 
that we will be working with the Diversity Coalition to set up meetings. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen in terms of where the Urban Renewal Boundary is large it covers 
most of the City of Madras. We are seeing a number of different reasons that we 
think you need a different kind of activity in different portions of the corridor. First of 
all knowing that resources are limited it is important to focus those in places you will 
get the best bang for your buck. Then there are different kinds of development form 
that are appropriate in different portions of the corridor. We talked about the 
objective of this being to support new development. To see new commercial 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 7 of 8 

development coming out of the ground but in order to get there we need to have 
some evaluation criteria. Right now we have a really large list of projects and you 
are not going to be able to do them all. So we need some way to wrap our heads 
around which ones are the ones that should come to the top in the near term. Here 
is our preliminary thinking about the geography of the area. At the open house we 
asked people where the heart of downtown Madras. So the core investment area 
this is where we are seeing the MRC and its partners wanting to take proactive 
investments to try and spur new commercial development to occur. So the kinds of 
activities that might be undertaking here would be acquiring specific sights that 
seem to have the potential of being catalytic. Then attracting a developer and 
entering into a developer agreement with that developer to jointly develop the 
parcel. In both the north and south corridor which are largely auto-oriented areas 
that have larger available parcels those are the kind of places where your primary 
goal is going to be to generate tax increment finance. To see new development 
happen that feeds the coffers of the Urban Renewal Agency so you can make more 
investment in the core area.  
 
These projects may still need support but the support will probably be at a lower 
level, and might be more responsive to developer interest as opposed to proactive. 
So a developer comes in that wants to build on a site but has access challenges 
because of ODOT. The Urban Renewal Agency could help improve the access to 
allow that development to occur as an example.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead the core area drawing the 
distinction between proactive and reactive. When you look at some of the larger 
projects that district has completed in the past. Largely they have been reactive in 
other words we have been waiting for the opportunity to come. The difference here 
would be really a distinct strategy to market and get things going in the short term in 
the core area.  

 
The Commission discussed how the floodplain and floodway could affect new 
development coming in. There was a discussion about the Army Corps of Engineer 
and the re-mapping of the floodplain and floodway.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen draft criteria include generate tax increment that is the property tax 
revenue that comes from new development. That is necessary in order to give 
financial capacity to your Urban Renewal District. Projects that support development 
on underutilized or vacant sites, projects that leverage partnerships in terms of cash 
and also interest and willingness to help move it forward, and opportunity to achieve 
multiple goals recognizing that if a project does achieves more than one outcome.  
 
The Commission discussed generating tax increment and how one business could 
bring in more businesses and generate more tax increment. There was a discussion 
on what the investment core is and how the flood plain and flood way will impact this 
area. The Commission talked about their focus being outside the flood plain and 
flood way.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen asked the Commission to place dots on the criteria for what they 
like best and least. We have way too many projects more than can be accomplished 
in any reasonable time. We need to prioritize those that we will be undertaking in the 
short term and those that will be undertaking in the long term. They are in categories 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
November 4, 2015 

Page 8 of 8 

we will go through the categories then we will have you come up and put the dots on 
the board. 
 
The first category is supporting development the kinds of things that fall into this 
category are buying land, providing grants to developers. The next category is 
attracting new businesses and supporting existing businesses. Next category is 
place making and infrastructure this is something that we heard about a lot. Making 
the place look more beautiful easier to navigate and have fewer trip hazards. The 
last category is around downtown promotion.  
 
Under supporting development we have a project to clarify the SDC process. 
Evaluate options to redevelop MRC property or publicly owned in partnership. 
Market Madras opportunities with developers try to bring developers into Madras. 
Provide predevelopment assistance including fast tracking development process. 
Land trade with County on Fairgrounds property. Support affordable housing.  
 
The category to attract new business target store front improvement program be 
more proactive. Support the formation of a downtown business association. There 
are a lot of things on the list for place making and infrastructure. Some of them are 
carryovers from the previous analysis. So things like increase the convenience for 
visitors. Things like street furniture, urban canopy, maintaining landscaping and 
continuing the downtown flower program, adding crosswalks and traffic calming 
safety improvements along Highway 97. Downtown clean-up initiative using 
volunteers to pick up trash and pull weeds. Sidewalk repair and the possibility of 
supporting the library expansion. Willow creek flood way vision is a carryover from 
the previous plan, and the by-pass is also a carry over. Strengthen the identity of 
downtown with signage, marketing materials, and promotional materials to try and 
bring people in. New events, improvements to the Saturday Market, explore the 
opportunity to create new attractions. Mural program and temporary landscaping. So 
this is incomplete and I am sure you have ideas of things to add and we would like 
you to let us know what you would like to see.  
 
The consultants asked the MRC to place blue dots for the short term projects and 
orange for long term projects.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting is it the consensus of this Commission on our schools whether it 
is perceived or real is a stumbling block for us. If there is nothing else meeting 
adjourn. 
 

IX. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 
              
Doug Lofting     Date   
Chair 
 
 
          
Nicholas Snead    Date 
Community Development Director 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 1 of 10 

City of Madras 
Madras Redevelopment Commission 

Special Meeting Minutes 
December 9, 2015 

 
 
 
 
I. Call to Order 
 

The Madras Redevelopment Commission meeting was called to order by Chair, 
Doug Lofting at 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday December 9, 2015, in the Madras City 
Council Chambers. 

 
Members in Attendance: 
Chair Doug Lofting 
Commissioner Chuck Schmidt 
Commissioner Royce Embanks 
Commissioner Doeshia Jacobs 
Commissioner Tom Brown 
Commissioner Blanca Reynoso 
 
Members Absent Were: 
Commissioner Don Reeder 
There are two Membership vacancies.  
 
Staff Members in Attendance: 
Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director  
Brandie McNamee, Finance Director  
Michele Quinn, Community Development Administrative Assistant  
 
Visitors 
Brenda Bartlett, SGA CPA’s 
Lorelei Juntunen, EcoNorthwest (By Video Confrence) 
Emily Picha, EcoNorthwest (By Video Confrence) 
Janet Brown, EDCO 

 
II. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Adoption of Agenda 
 
B. Approval of Minutes 
 
 1. Approval of November 2015 MRC Vouchers 
  

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIR TOM BROWN TO APPROVE THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AS AMMENDED.  THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
BLANCA REYNOSO AND PASSED UNANMOUSLY. 
 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 2 of 10 

III. Visitor Comments 
 
IV. Annual Audit Presentation FY 2014-15 

Brenda Bartlett this is our report I like to let everybody know that the financial 
statements are managements. They are prepared reviewed by management what 
we do is give an audit and we give an opinion on those statements. On the top of 
page two that is our opinion. What you want to see here is a non-modified opinion 
you want to see that we say that the financial statements present fairly and all 
material respects the financial position of the Commission. Under other matters 
there are other things inside this report supplementary information that is of good 
use to people. I think the most interesting is the management’s discussion and 
analysis. That is written by Brandie and probably reviewed by Nick. It gives you a 
little snap shot of what happened during the year. Did your assets increase, did you 
take on more debt, and did you buy more capital assets. Another great thing to take 
a look at is the budgetary schedules. The last page, page three one thing that every 
Municipal Corporation in Oregon has to do is your auditors have to do some 
additional procedures. Those are to look at that you are complying with certain laws.  
 
If you turn to page 30 that is the report that we are required to do, so in addition to 
the financial statement audit we have to look at compliance with certain laws. Those 
laws are in the middle of the page. Making sure you deposited public funds in safe 
vehicles, making sure you haven’t over extended your debt by law. Making sure you 
follow local budget law. That you have insurance in force and if you have any kind of 
public contracting going on that you have complied with those rules. So basically 
what we are telling the Secretary of State is that we didn’t find anything that causes 
us to believe that you hadn’t complied with all of those laws. On the last page we 
talk about internal control we don’t give an opinion on internal control but if there are 
issues we do let the Council know, it is one of our professional obligations. Your 
internal controls are good they have worked really hard over particularly over the 
past year to make sure you have proper segregation of duties, and that you are 
reconciling accounts.  
 
This letter is a required communication at the conclusion of our audit its categories 
that are prescribed by professional standards. That we have to let you know how 
those things went. The first thing is we talk about any significant findings this is 
where we tell you management is responsible for selecting and using appropriate 
accounting policies. There were no transactions that the agency entered into that 
didn’t have authoritative guidance. We talk a little about accounting estimates you 
don’t have a lot of accounting estimates except for your development properties. We 
had no difficulties during the audit, no adjustments, no disagreement with 
management. We do ask management to sign a representation letter and that letter 
says that we told you everything you need to know and we answered truthfully to all 
your inquiries. We gave you all the documentation you asked for and there is 
nothing that we haven’t told you that are important to these statements. We are not 
aware of any consultation with other independent accountants, and we didn’t have 
any findings or issues that we thought merited to bring to your attention. 
 
Doug Lofting Brandie I do have a question regarding page four it says the MRC was 
able to make a payment of Seventy Five Thousand dollars to the City of Madras. I 
can’t find where that payment was made and I don’t remember us making that 
payment. 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 3 of 10 

Brandie McNamee it is treated as a special payment if you look under the other 
financing sources where it says grants, and loans one hundred eighty two thousand 
five hundred ($182,500.00) that seventy five thousand ($75,000.00) is within the one 
hundred eighty two thousand five hundred ($182,500.00). This is where if you recall 
in the 2014 audit we had an over appropriation of budget because we budgeted for it 
as a capital payment. Technically it should have been a special payment category, 
and we fixed it. So this is now where you see that, that is where the Madras Cinema 
payment was one hundred thousand ($100,000.00). The MRC payment to City Hall 
was seventy five thousand ($75,000.00), and then we did seventy five hundred 
dollars ($7,500.00) in the L Street project for lighting.  

 
 V. Urban Revitalization Action Plan Project Update (Video Conference)  

Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Nick and Lorelei how are you 
doing this evening. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen we are doing well can you hear us alright? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Yes, before we get into the 
presentation I know you have a couple of slides that identify the agenda this 
evening. Tonight our objective is to have the consultant’s report back on a lot of 
work that they have done.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen since we were there we took a look at the retail needs and done a 
tremendous amount of stakeholder and public outreach. Have developed an initial 
set of projects and have gotten feedback on how those ought to be prioritized. We 
have some details of the public outreach to share with you and survey results. There 
is a meeting coming up with the Diversity Coalition next week. We are also putting 
out a Spanish version of our survey. We have a good response from the survey 
there were 90 responses from the community survey and 114 from the major 
employee survey. 
  
Lorelei went through the responses that they have on the survey. The survey 
showed that there are a large number of people looking for a brewery or deli. There 
were a high number of people that are interested in having apparel and sporting 
goods in Madras.   
 
Lorelei went over the word clouds that were developed with the information provided 
by citizens at the November 2, 2015 Open House. 
 
Lorelei went through the employee survey 56% live and work in Madras, 44% of 
people that work in Madras but don’t live here. We are really interested in the 44% 
this is the potential growth market for the City. What it might take to attract these 
people to live and shop in downtown. There was an important message that 
focusing on creating a vibrant retail core is helpful for attracting residents in addition 
to being helpful for supporting downtown development. Other issues that are 
showing up on the list is safety and perception, opportunities for housing, better 
schools, cleanliness, and attractiveness are also motivating peoples decision 
regarding where to live.  
 
Commissioner Royce Embanks do you think that the construction that we had going 
on here skewed the perception of what it is like in town, and both Redmond and  



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 4 of 10 

 
Bend has built bypasses so you don’t have the traffic you have in Madras. As far as 
safety Madras is as safe as Redmond and safer than Bend.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen we agree part of what we are looking for out of this for our 
purposes does the survey support that we are headed in the right direction. Does it 
help us to understand better what kinds of services and what kind of improvements 
would be necessary and supported. We are hearing the need for shopping and retail 
needs downtown.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead discussed the fact that the results 
will be independent of the plan. All the responses you will be able to refer back and 
the plan will be thicker. 
 
Commissioner Royce Embanks how does the City provide more crosswalks and 
stop lights on an ODOT Highway. 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead good question we are updating 
our Transportation System Plan so this will be good feedback for that plan.  
 
Commissioner Royce Embanks with ODOT money we are not going to leverage 
ODOT money to put in a stop light. Because we have a highway going through our 
town and not a bypass makes us a different town. Traffic goes through Madras 
much faster coming from the North or South and by the time it reaches downtown 
they are exceeding the speed limit. You can’t change the fact that Hwy 97 has more 
traffic on it now than in the last two years than the five years previously when we did 
the traffic count. We need to focus on the long term solutions like a bypass. 
 
Commissioner Doeshia Jacobs I want to get back to the downtown core how to get 
businesses back in the downtown. We need to get downtown up and running that is 
my main focus. 
 
Janet Brown-EDCO Janet asked questions about the survey and how the questions 
on the survey were directed. Janet also pointed out that Thriftway and Erickson’s is 
the same store.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen I am going to go into what kind interventions and investments 
make sense for the downtown core. What is the frame work for thinking about why 
and how we should be investing in downtown Madras?  
 
Lorelei went through several slides talking about the Action Plan Investment 
Framework. A 20 year vision focusing on TIF generation and partner projects in the 
short term; longer term investments in amenities and place making. Lorelei talked 
about the different partners that the MRC could partner with.  
 
The 20 year vision for Downtown Madras is a recognizable, vibrant destination with 
public and private investment in small scale shops, a mix of restaurants, and cultural 
amenities that reflect the area’s diversity. Madras’ position as the hub of River 
Canyon Country attracts visitors and new residents who appreciate the community’s 
commitment to quality of life. 
 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 5 of 10 

 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead we will need some guidance from 
the Commission to whether this makes sense or would you like some slight 
modifications. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen talked to the Madras Redevelopment Commission about when you 
should be investing. You won’t be investing in all of the projects now it will happen 
phased over a period of time. You might be investing in different projects for 
different reasons. We will talk about the importance of near term projects that are 
focused on TIF generation, and look at other projects that might support livability or 
achieve other goals. 
 
The core downtown was recognized as the heart of the City of Madras. That is the 
area that really makes sense to be proactive in your approach to spurring new 
development to occur. That is the kind of area you might want to be acquiring 
partners or reaching out to property owners. To try and understand what might 
motivate them to improve their properties or redevelop. You might think about 
making the kinds of investments necessary to create a place which feels walkable 
and has a distinct identity.  
 
Lorelei talked about the Urban Core and where the floodway and floodplain runs. 
What type of development you would be expected to see in the urban core and the 
civic core.  
 
Janet Brown asked about including the properties down to A Street 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Janet I think you have raised a 
really good question. Part of our challenge in the district is that we have a lot of 
sporadic developments so with the Urban Core and Civic Core boundary together is 
trying to do is focus within a tighter geography or area our investments in the 
downtown. So we can build a nucleus or synergy of energy. Where I ended up and I 
am thinking about the property on B Street between fourth and fifth the undeveloped 
property. I think that this boundary makes sense for focusing the investment within 
that tight area. However I don’t believe if this was in the plan today that it would 
preclude the Urban Renewal District from making investment outside of this area 
that would be in your district. We would like to see that property developed today it 
has some challenges. I don’t know how likely it is but should there be an opportunity 
for the Urban Renewal District to invest on that property I can guarantee you staff 
would be coming to the Commission asking for your assistance.  
 
Commissioner Chuck Schmidt when you drive in from the north the very first thing 
you see is a big vacant ugly lot. If you look at the word clouds what were some of 
the biggest words they were dirty, unattractive. That sends a message to me that 
says let’s look at the visual thing that needs to be important lets clean it up.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting regarding the urban core I think there is a bit of frustration on 
members that are sitting here tonight. That is that nonprofits have gotten a hold of 
so much of our downtown property. It basically hurts us in a couple of ways it hurts 
us that there is no revenue coming into the district, and that one of the major lots is 
held by a nonprofit they are not going to release it for less than one million dollars. If 
you are looking for someone and trying to get them to put their money in here I 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 6 of 10 

would have a hard time putting my name on asking them to do it past B Street.   
 
Commissioner Chuck Schmidt we just spent a half a million dollars on the Theater 
can we look long term down the line and spend a million dollars and buy that 
property? So we can do something and make an incentive for someone.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting that is something that Lorelei and Nick P. can give us guidance 
on. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen we can talk about that when we get to the section on projects, after 
we go through some of the research that Nick has been doing on the financials. 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead this plan is establishing a vision 
for the next 10 years. That functions as a strategic plan and should there be an 
opportunity that comes about that isn’t presented today you can slightly deviate from 
the plan.  
 
Janet Brown even if we go up to B street just think about one side between C Street 
and B Street as you are heading north. You have a 1970 office that hasn’t been 
updated you have the Stag there is a gym with no windows. It is not a very pretty 
block and it is right at a stop light in downtown. 
 
The Commission discussed the state of the buildings in the downtown core whether 
it should be renovated or torn down and rebuilt. We need to be able to stop people 
and get them shopping in downtown.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen Nick I am happy to work with you to figure out how to draw that 
boundary. I do want to stay out of the floodway, but there may be a way we can 
expand that a little bit and still keep our focused area.  
 
Lorelei talked to the Commission about why they would invest and by which criteria 
you chose to make your investment. The criteria that are clearly coming to the top 
are generating tax increment, supporting development on underused or vacant sites; 
they are likely to catalyze additional redevelopment adjacent. Other criteria that is 
also important is leverage partnership, willing interested property owner located in 
the URA. Really the focus is on the first three criteria it is generating increment, 
taking care of underutilized or vacant site, and it is likely to catalyze additional 
redevelopment.  
 
Lorelei went through some example slides that had conceptual drawings of several 
lots that could be developed. 
  
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead we have some of these concepts 
in our existing plan and it helped us advance the projects. The MRC owns two 
properties one on Fifth Street and one on Fourth Street could we use one or both of 
those properties in Walker Macy’s conceptual drawings.  
 
Nick Popenuk went over the overview of the Real Market Value (RMV) and Assessed 
Value (AV) and taxable value. Real Market Value is what your property would sell for in 
an arm’s length market transaction. That is a value that goes up and down and 
fluctuates sometimes dramatically with overall market conditions. In Oregon however 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 7 of 10 

that is not what your tax is based on. Instead you are taxed on the assessed value which 
in many situations is different from the real market value.  
 
Nick P. continued to explain the difference between the assessed value and real market 
value and how you are taxed and how the recession affected the Urban Renewal Area. 
Nick P. explained that our area has experience some declines in real market value in 
recent years. That is an important consideration when we are forecasting our tax 
increment finance revenues forward. The reason we are doing the tax increment finance 
revenue forecast is to provide context for understand what the borrowing capacity of the 
district might be. What its financial ability is to borrow money and take on new projects 
and invest in the area.  
 
Nick Popenuk continued to go over the historical trends in the area of the annual 
percent growth in assessed value, and annual percent decline in real market value. 
Over the last five years we can see that the assessed value is growing at one to two 
percent per year. The real market value has been dropping across the area real 
market values dropped by almost twenty percent last year.  
 
Nick P. continued to go over the real market value and assessed value of the area 
and how it will impact the area. The conversations that I have had with the County 
Assessor’s office indicates, that next year and probably for the next several years 
they don’t see justification for increasing real market value in the area.  
 
Nick Popenuk went over the preliminary TIF projections going forward the tax 
revenue has been fluctuating but on average has been around three hundred and 
fifty thousand dollars ($350,000) a year. Roughly that is what we are forecasting for 
the foreseeable future.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Nick P. before you go on, can 
you clarify that these are projections without any investments into the district that 
would increase the assessed value? 
 
Nick Popenuk that is a very good point this is our baseline projection we are going to 
be working with city staff to identify specific catalyst projects, investments that the 
MRC might make in the area. How much those investments would cost and what 
likely taxable development would be generated from them.  
 
Nick Popenuk went on to the outstanding debt service for the MRC. The annual TIF 
revenue is sufficient to make all of the outstanding obligations, but there is not a lot 
of surplus revenue to be able to make additional investments. That means any new 
borrowings will need to be considered carefully in the area.  
 
Nick Popenuk went over the preliminary findings with the MRC there is a slim 
cushion between revenue and expenditures in the district right now. There is enough 
tax revenue being forecast to cover outstanding obligations but not a lot surplus 
revenue. We are concerned about the falling real market values if that continues to 
much for too long it could negatively affect the assessed value growth in the area. At 
the same time, eventually when those real market values turn around it does provide 
the opportunity for the district to experience more than 3% growth in a year. Overall 
what this means to us is new investments in the short term from a financial 
perspective should be focused on generating new and increased taxable value. Any 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 8 of 10 

new debt that is undertaken in the area should be done carefully. The City does 
have an relationship with professional financial advisors those are great experts to 
turn to, to make sure that the Urban Renewal Area and the City aren’t getting 
themselves into too great of risk. There is an option for the Urban Renewal Area if it 
has a project that comes along and you need additional financial capacity and your 
revenues haven’t increased yet. Some of your existing financial obligations have the 
potential to be covered in the short term by other City funds or resources until the 
area fiscal position improves.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead this is the reason why we funded 
this project. We knew we had some changes in financial conditions. We knew there 
were some risk to those conditions changing and hopefully not negatively. What the 
Commission is seeing here in the results of the preliminary analysis is a better 
understanding of the risk.  
 
Commissioner Doeshia Jacobs asked about having an outlet mall in the downtown 
area.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen we have not identified the specific kinds of businesses beyond the 
categories of business that would be the most appropriate. I think the way the 
projects will be described in the action plan will give staff the ability to move forward 
and reach out to general merchandisers.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting one thing I don’t see in your report to us tonight is in regards to 
the MRC and trying to get partners. What we often hear in the City of Madras is that 
our SDC’s are too high. I don’t believe that and until I can see a local comparison 
with our neighboring towns then we don’t know. What I believe what this 
Commission and myself would like to see is an SDC comparison on commercial 
properties.   
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Chair Lofting we would be happy 
to do that in fact staff had every intention to present that as you requested that of 
staff earlier this week. We needed other City staff to confirm there assessments to 
we knew it was a valid comparison. We can present that to the Commission in 
January if you would like.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting thank you Nick. I think that will be a very valuable tool for us 
when looking for partners. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen we are into the project conversation, this is preliminary, and 
intentionally preliminary. As you know the survey is still out there and we are 
gathering feedback. I will be walking through about fifteen projects that have been 
identified through the process to date. We have taken and prioritized them based on 
input from community members, business owners, and the MRC. We have grouped 
them into two categories of projects one is a group of projects that are intended to 
encourage development, and to increase assessed value in the Urban Renewal 
Area. The second category is funding physical improvements in the area.  
 
Lorelei went through the list and explained how they ranked the projects based on 
the survey.  
 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 9 of 10 

Lorelei Juntunen you can see in the development category four projects that come to 
the top through both having community support and meeting the criteria. Those are 
actively working to recruit a department store or general merchandise store, making 
improvements to store fronts, working to recruit a brewery or restaurant, and then 
attracting developer attention and provide financial support to developers as they are 
interested in advancing projects. The projects that come to the top on the physical 
improvement side having high community support and meeting short term criteria. In the 
short term really new programs that clean-up downtown and they could be led by local 
community groups. 
 
The Commission discussed the prioritization of the projects and agrees that they are 
in line with what the community would like. They discussed the recruitment process 
and the difficulty to bring a business to our community. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen talked to the Commission about acquiring properties that don’t 
require third party next steps. Where there might be the best opportunity to move 
forward and flush out what a recruitment strategy might look like.  
 
Commissioner Tom Brown this is a really good document this is something we have 
been looking for, for a while. I can see some things in here that we can work with 
when we look at. For us to create any dollars out of this we are going to have to 
spend some money that is going to create new construction that is going to build the 
tax base. The challenge will be to try and get the downtown folks help themselves 
we have some absentee owners.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting does anyone have any more questions or comments? 
 
Janet Brown I would like to make a clarification on the document that shows the 
partners. I want to make sure that everyone is clear they have EDCO down as 
recruitment of the department store, general merchandise store. What EDCO works 
on are traded sector companies so I don’t work in retail commercial type companies. 
I am happy to help whenever I can I just wanted to make that differentiation.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Janet so maybe EDCO doesn’t 
take the lead and I appreciate the feedback, however I would think that EDCO could 
help perhaps assembling market data related to employment or things like that. If it 
were removed I wouldn’t want that to preclude EDCO from being involved behind 
the scenes.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting are there any other items tonight before we adjourn? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead I do not have anything I will 
confirm the date of the January meeting. We will also be confirming two meeting 
dates in June for the budget efforts. I would like to thank Brandie for her help with 
audit this year.  
 
Chair Doug Lofting after the January meeting I think we need to discuss where we 
are financially and Brandie you will play a major part in that. From what we are 
seeing is that are revenues are barely paying our bills. So for us to do anything at all 
we are going to have to operate from a line of credit.  
 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
December 9, 2015 

Page 10 of 10 

Finance Director Brandie McNamee I have reached out to a municipal advisor that 
specializes in Urban Renewal Districts and debt capacity. One thing that did come 
up in our audit it is one of the State statutes that they have to audit our indebtedness 
calc. There are some things just because you have the ability to borrow doesn’t 
mean you necessarily need to borrow. 
 
Chair Doug Lofting thank you so much is there anything else?  
 
 

IX. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:33 p.m. 

 
 
 
              
Doug Lofting     Date   
Chair 
 
 
          
Nicholas Snead    Date 
Community Development Director 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 1 of 9 

City of Madras 
Madras Redevelopment Commission 

Special Meeting Minutes 
January 20, 2016 

 
 
I. Call to Order 
 

The Madras Redevelopment Commission meeting was called to order by Chair, 
Doug Lofting at 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday January 20, 2016 in the Madras City 
Council Chambers. 

 
Members in Attendance: 
Commissioner Chuck Schmidt 
Commissioner Royce Embanks 
Commissioner Tom Brown 
Chair Doug Lofting 
Commissioner Don Reeder 
Commissioner Doeshia Jacobs 
 
Members Absent Were: 
Commissioner Blanca Reynoso 
There are two Membership vacancies.  
 
Staff Members in Attendance: 
Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director  
Gus Burril, City Administrator 
Brandie McNamee, Finance Director  
Michele Quinn, Community Development Administrative Assistant  
 
Visitors 

 
II. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Adoption of Agenda 
 
B. Approval of January 2016 MRC Vouchers 
 
C. EcoNorthwest Contract Amendment No. 1, to amend the Scope of Work to 

include Task 5.1- Forecast TIF Revenue, Task 5.2 Final Scenario Analysis, 
and to increase total budget to $88,000.00 

 
D.  EcoNorthwest Contract Amendment No. 2, to extend term of Professional 

Services Agreement to February 15, 2016 . 
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER TOM BROWN TO APPROVE THE 
CONSENT AGENDA AS AMMENDED.  THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER CHUCK SCHMIDT AND PASSED UNANMOUSLY. 
 
 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 2 of 9 

 
III. Annual Election of Officers 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ROYCE EMBANKS TO ELECT DOUG 
LOFTING AS CHAIR PERSON AND TOM BROWN AS VICE CHAIR.  THE MOTION WAS 
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER DON REEDER AND PASSED UNANMOUSLY. 

 
IV. Visitors Comments 

None 
 
Chair Doug Lofting At this time I would like to close are regular meeting and open 
the meeting for the Supplemental Budget Hearing.  
 

 V. Supplemental Budget Hearing 
 

A. Madras Redevelopment Reinvestment Fund 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee The resolution in your packet 2016-01 is a 
resolution that requires a supplemental budget because it exceeds 15% transfer 
from contingency. It is dropping the contingency in the General Fund from 
$10,000.00 down to $3,000.00 and the other transfer that requires a supplemental 
budget there is a 10% increase in overall appropriation in the re-investment fund. 
This is increasing special payments from $25,000.00 to $10,000.00 for a total of 
$35,000.00. 
 
Chair Doug Lofting Brandie can you walk us through what that money will cover for 
us.   
 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee The General Fund the current special payment 
commitments supported by the MRC for the year are going to go over budget, if we 
do not do a special payment adjustment. What is needed in that category of Special 
Payments is two hundred thirty five thousand ($235,000.00) to meet the 
commitments. The other additional increase of ten thousand ($10,000.00) is to offset 
material and services specifically the legal line item. 
 
City Administrator Gus Burril In July we ran two or three scenarios past the MRC 
Board and said what level of focus in those categories would you like us to go after. 
When we adopted your plan then we said we would come back to you later with 
follow up budget resolutions. 
 
Chair Doug Lofting Commissioners do you have questions or concerns? 
 
Commissioner Tom Brown Where does that leave our reinvestment fund? 
 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee We have received early payoff from some of the 
loans so that number is up to forty two thousand ($42,000.00). By upping the special 
payments by ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) it is essentially a wash.  
 
Commissioner Tom Brown Do we foresee any other change orders? 
 
 
City Administrator Gus Burril What we don’t know is the outcome of the proposed 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 3 of 9 

property for derelict clean-up. What we suggested between the two funds was if you did 
grant let’s use the general fund for loan use the reinvestment fund. The idea behind the 
reinvestment fund was loan proceeds would continue to revolve and come back.  
 
Commissioner Chuck Schmidt Is this property the one on “D” Street? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead No, this is the Potter property located 
due east of McDonald’s where we had the citizen lose their life. 
 
Commissioner Don Reeder Brandie is that considered an ending fund balance as of 
December 31,

 2015? 
 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee Yes, December 31, 2015 is two hundred twenty 
three thousand ($223,000.00). There is a property that is currently in escrow that we 
anticipate closing February 15, 2016. So I have issued pay offs on a loan and that would 
bring approximately twenty six thousand ($26,000.00) back to the reinvestment fund. It is 
nice that the MRC loans are being paid off and they are being paid off because the 
properties are selling.  
 
Commissioner Don Reeder Brandie is that a percentage the $223,000.00 as a policy of 
the board?  
 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee No there is no fund balance policy for the MRC. 
That is one thing I have been exploring because a lot of jurisdictions have fund balance 
policies as a mechanism to gage their budget. Gus has allowed me to reach out to D.A. 
Davison which is an underwriting firm to compare us against industry standards. To see 
what is a safe threshold based on our debt obligations and what should we have in our 
fund balances. 
 
Commissioner Don Reeder Do you have an estimate is this a good estimate of 
$223,000.00 or would it be less or more? 
 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee Generally they say you want to have about 18 
months of operating cash on hand as a safe threshold to have in your fund balance.  
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead That’s right 10% is usually the rule of 
thumb. Of course that is a policy decision the MRC would need to make. Understand 
that we have two different funds one is the General Fund and the Reinvestment Fund.  
 
Finance Director Brandie McNamee If this is something as a Commission you want me 
to start working on it is up to you.  
 
Commissioner Don Reeder I am new but I have been on other boards and it is nice to 
have an idea of what the ending fund balance is for protection against anything that 
might happen in the future. 
 
Chair Doug Lofting I am in favor of exploring what other districts do and have you 
presented back to us. So is everyone comfortable with the thirty five thousand dollars 
($35,000.00)? Is there any other questions?  
 
Chair Doug Lofting The budget hearing is now closed. 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 4 of 9 

 
VI. Budget Resolution No. MRC 2016-01 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER DON REEDER TO AUTHORIZE AND 
INCREASE IN APPOPRIATIONS TO RECOGNIZE UNANTICIPATED REVENUES, AND 
EXPENSES AND THE TRANSFER OF APPRIATIONS WITHIN FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016.  THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER CHUCK SCHMIDT AND 
PASSED UNANMOUSLY. 
 
VII. Appointment of Budget Committee Members 

Finance Director Brandie McNamee So with the outreach efforts from community 
surveys I think it did spark some interest in the MRC budget committee. As you 
remember last year we were slim on members at large. This year we have six 
individuals to appoint to the budget committee I have confirmed their addresses and 
they all reside within the two mile radius.  
Those members are: 
Janet Brown 
Steve Jansen 
Dan Chamness 
Maura Schwartz 
Tena Jackson 
Bartt Brick 
 
Chair Doug Lofting Brandie it is my opinion that you have done well these people 
will all serve us very well on the budget committee. Commissioners any concerns 
with any of the people listed?  
 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER TOM BROWN TO APPOINT THE 
FOLLOWING PEOPLE TO THE BUDGET COMMITTEE JANET BROWN, STEVE JANSEN, 
DAN CHAMNESS, MAURA SCHWARTZ TENA JACKSON AND BARTT BRICK.  THE 
MOTION WAS SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER CHUCK SCHMIDT AND PASSED 
UNANMOUSLY. 

 
 

VIII. Presentation of Draft Urban Renewal Action Plan 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead The purpose of this agenda item is to 
review a 90% draft of your plan. We would like to present you the plan this evening 
obtain your feedback and in two weeks, at the February 3, 2016 meeting, EcoNorthwest 
will revise the plan and present it to you for formal adoption. 
 
Lorelei Juntunen The first portion of the presentation will go to Nick Popenuk to do an 
update of the financial analysis.  
 
Nick Popenuk Went over the finalized baseline TIF forecast, an alternate scenario with 
new development, projected MRC cash flow, and timing and impacts of potential short 
term investments.  
 
Nick P. explained the base line cash flow compared to base cash flow with a line of 
credit. Nick P. went through a second scenario that touched on projects like a general 
merchandise store, a grocer and brewery. Nick P. explained to the MRC about investing 
in projects that take longer to receive financial payback.  From the time that a developer 
puts a shovel in the ground to the time that you receive increased tax revenues. There is 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 5 of 9 

a delay of about two years. That is how long it takes the project to be completed, for it to 
be certified for occupancy, for the assessor to pick it up on the tax rolls, and for the taxes 
to be sent out and collected and paid. Overall both scenarios they both show long term 
steady growth if you have new development that growth will be more. In the next few 
years we see that there will be financial constraints in the district.  
 
Any significant projects in the next few years will require borrowing if you want to spend 
something close to one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) per year.  Even if you 
wanted to spend fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) on a new project it is going to 
require additional capacity that the district will not have on its own unless it borrows. 
However borrowing should not happen unless you have certainty that the project you are 
investing in is going to stimulate higher tax revenues. Borrowing money to invest in 
projects that won’t have that guaranteed additional tax revenue you are undertaking 
additional debt. We want to make sure that we are advising you that taking on new debt 
should be done with a lens looking for taxable projects. That is going to increase your 
revenue and your ability to pay off that debt.  
 
Even with borrowing funds it looks like the districts capacity is limited to one hundred 
thousand dollars ($100,000.00) per year over the next three years. Long term forecast is 
better, with increasing revenue after 2020. 
 
Commissioner Chuck Schmidt Is there some formula we should use if someone wants to 
come and do a brewery for our return from our investment? 
 
Nick Popenuk I provided a spread sheet it has a tab on it that will allow you to model a 
new investment scenario.  
 
The MRC Commission continued to discuss how the spread sheet works and how some 
of the returns might be with certain investments. There was additional discussion on 
types of investments and returns they might bring.  
 
Lorelei Juntunen The remainder of the presentation is focused on the action plan draft 
and the projects so we can get some feedback. So we can take this the rest of the way 
to a complete document. So we have talked about different strategies for different areas 
and I will show the map and we can talk about that to make sure we have it right. In 
terms of why and how, we have established an evaluation criterion that we applied to the 
projects that we will look at. What we are looking at is you have a very linear urban 
renewal area and what we have heard from the public involvement was the need to 
create a center for the City. As you are thinking about investing that is the geography 
that you want to be as proactive as possible. That might be a geography where you go 
beyond the ten years in terms of thinking about the payback period. As far as the north 
and south corridor of town you may be more reactive. 
 
Project prioritization criteria and these are the short term with focus on tax increment 
generation, need to support development on underutilized or vacant sites, and it 
catalyzes other development. So that is the lens we were using to prioritize projects in 
this plan update. Lorelei went over the MRC priority projects these are projects that 
scored well for community support. Partnership projects which are important but MRC 
may not take the lead you would work with your partners to move forward and advance 
that agenda. For the projects that are MRC priority projects we have developed detailed 
project sheets. That provides content about each individual projects and direction so you 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 6 of 9 

can pick this up and move forward with making these projects happen in the community. 
The MRC priority projects are: 

• General Merchandise Store 
• Brewery or Grocery store 
• Making sure the City is aware of opportunities 
• Clarify the development processes 
• Explore changes to the façade program 
• Downtown clean-up program 
• Core area sidewalk improvements 
• Improvements to pedestrian safety on Hwy 26 and 97 

 
Recruit General Merchandise Store- The need for better general merchandise retail 
opportunities was the most frequently retail cited need among residents and 
stakeholders. General merchandise includes and non-food or non-grocery products, 
such as clothing, outdoor gear, cosmetics, jewelry. 
 
The MRC will refine and implement a comprehensive strategy to attract a general 
merchandiser or a store that offers general merchandise goods in addition to grocery 
products. Beginning with the information in the Commercial Development Opportunities 
Analysis, the City will create a refined “recruitment package” that can serve as a starting 
point in marketing available sites to potential tenants and developers. 
 
Comments and Questions 
 
There were questions about using the available buildings in the downtown core to 
attract a business instead of building new. 
 
Bringing in discounts stores where highway 97 and 26 come together.  
 
Most big box retailers look at population, educational obtainment, and average 
household income.  
 
We may not have the population but we have enough people driving through on 
Hwy 97/26 to support a big box store.  
 
Recruit Brewery- The recruitment of a brewery to downtown Madras was a high priority 
among survey respondents and could help to spark other investment in downtown by 
capturing business from visitors. 
 
The MRC will work to recruit a brewery to Madras our unique assets. There are 
generally two categories of breweries: small production facilities of brewpubs. 
 
Comments and Questions 
 
Why aren’t we looking at bringing in a Hispanic brewery? 
 
There was a question about the possibility of having a marijuana grow operation as a 
potential opportunity?  
 
As long as it would be here to stay we don’t want to bring one in and not have it stay.  



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 7 of 9 

 
Develop Recruitment Toolkit- Technical analysis and outreach point to a need for new 
development in Madras, and specifically in the Urban and Civic Core. In open houses 
and community surveys, Madras residents and downtown stakeholders discussed a 
strong desire for a more vibrant “heart” in Madras that includes new retail opportunities, 
more attractive store fronts, and a more visible center for the community. 
 
This action creates a system for developer outreach and opportunity tracking. It also 
outlines development assistance in the form of MRC grants/loans and predevelopment 
assistance. 
 
Comments and Questions 
 
Do we have something that focuses on our amenities like the pool or our water?  
 
There was a discussion about what is already being done by the Chamber of Commerce 
and EDCO. 
 
We need to look at tapping into events and exploiting our hiking trails, bicycling, ball 
fields, and aquatic center.  

 
Clarify Development Processes- Stakeholder outreach conducted as part of this 
Action Plan process uncovered a sentiment among some that the City’s development 
processes permitting, development fees, etc. are overly complicated and expensive, and 
may be driving away or stopping new development from occurring.  
 
Explore Changes to Façade Improvement Programs- Building maintenance and façade 
improvements were key themes from Action Plan community outreach. Improving the 
look of businesses can be important to ensuring that the business captures its market 
share; however, these investments can be challenging for small businesses to finance.  
 
Consider adjustments to the structure of existing Madras storefront improvement 
programs.  
 
Comments and Questions 
  
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Staff will be presenting in February to 
the MRC SDC comparison. 
 
Are SDC’s negotiable? 
 
There was a discussion on SDC’s and the possibility of the MRC helping with some 
SDC’s if a developer was to come in and the SDC’s was an issue. Is there the possibility 
to waive the SDC’s? It was commented that we don’t want to start waiving SDC fees you 
look at clarifying.  
 
Explore changes to the Façade Improvement Program- Building maintenance and 
façade improvements were key themes from Action Plan community outreach. Improving 
the look of businesses can be important to ensuring that the business captures its 
market share; however, these investments can be challenging for small businesses to 
finance. 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 8 of 9 

 
Consider adjustments to the structure of existing Madras storefront improvement 
programs. 
 
Comments and Questions 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead The difference here is we are 
focusing on our core area.  
 
Downtown Clean Up Program- Public outreach results show that Madras residents are 
concerned with the cleanliness and maintenance of their downtown corridor. Cleanliness 
in the physical environment affects their sense of pride and safety. Further, a tidier 
downtown would better appeal to tourists and incentivize motorists to stop in Madras 
rather than passing through. 

 
Community-based cleanup of the core of Madras would foster community ownership of 
downtown through maintenance as well low-cost improvements to improve the area’s 
appearance. 
 
Comments and Questions 
What is the schedule of our City street sweeper? Can we talk to the City about 
increasing it to twice a weekly with spring coming? 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead Possibly we can get some assistance 
from the parole and probation work crew. Can we possibly get some volunteers to help 
with the clean-up? 
 
City Administrator Gus Burril I can say this for Public Works we have added J Street and 
City View, B Street, Burg Drive. We have doubled the amount of parks and they are 
down two and a half employees from pre-recession levels, and they are maintaining a lot 
more. I want to be respectful of the need but I also want to be respectful for why are they 
not getting there as often. They are not resourced like they were years ago.  
 
There was a continued discussion about being resourced to help with sweeping and will 
we be able to add resources.  
 
Core Areas Sidewalk Improvements- Improving sidewalks in the core area and 
competing the sidewalk network was a high priority for community members. Addressing 
these needs can help to make the area more accessible for pedestrians and support 
connectivity. 

 
 This project will be implemented using two existing City programs the Sidewalk 
 Grant  Program and the Capital Improvement Program. 
 

Improvement Pedestrian Safety on Highway 26/97- Improvement to Pedestrian 
Safety on Hwy 26/97- Traffic on Highway 26/97 couplet presents many challenges 
to pedestrians who wish to access businesses in downtown Madras. About 13,000 
vehicles per day travel through Madras’ core on the US 26/97 couplet. The 
highways act as a barrier, crating challenges with creating a contiguous business 
district and a place that feels like a “core” of the City. 
 
Improvements should be focused in the core area, and could include new 



 Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 Special Meeting  
 January 20, 2016 

Page 9 of 9 

crosswalks and traffic calming strategies such as curb extensions, road diets, street 
trees, and on-street parking. Priority intersections include 4th and E Street, and other 
un-signalized intersections or crossings. 
 
Comments and Questions 
 
Community Development Director Nicholas Snead  Are you seeing the plan that is 
generally in keeping with what you expected when we started this project back in 
September? 
 
The Commission all agreed. 

 
IX. Additional Discussion 

Community Development Director Nicholas Snead  I met with Lee Baggett two weeks 
ago he thinks his façade project will be completed mid-February. At our February 
meeting we will present the regional SDC comparison.  
 

X. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:46 p.m. 

 
 
              
Doug Lofting     Date   
Chair 
 
 
 
          
Nicholas Snead    Date 
Community Development Director 































2/24/2016

1

 
A presentation illustrating the fund balance for 

Madras Redevelopment Commission

 Fund balance is the difference between assets and liabilities in a 
governmental fund.

 Fund balance is required to be reported in two components—reserved 
and unreserved.
o A designation is not legally binding but does convey a government’s plans for 

using its available resources.
 Fund balance is the “universal” measure that is consistently used by 

bond analysts, attorneys, government researchers, legislative staff, etc. 
– to make decisions based on the “health” of an organization. 

Definition per GASB: Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
http://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?pagename=GASB%2FGASBContent_C%2FUsersArticlePage&cid=1176156737123



2/24/2016

2

328,967

100,000
2,340

431,307

(58,048)
(182,500)
(177,000)
(417,548)

13,759

461,495

475,254

65,582

6,675
72,257

(6,222)

(6,222)

66,035

137,955

203,990

Per Audit as of 6/30/2015

Properties for Redevelopment 329,698 -
Receivables 23,476 134,193 
Accounts Payable (1,240) (684)
Deferred Revenues (21,845) (133,492)
Cash and investments 145,165 203,973 
Total Restricted Equity 475,254 203,990 

Total Equity: $679,244

Per Audit as of 6/30/2015



2/24/2016

3

679,244
155,335

(100,000)
(2,290,000)

(1,555,421)

What does Negative Net Position mean?
Net position is virtually the same as shareholders' equity--both 
reflect the difference between what the company owns and 
what it owes. Typically, the higher a company's net asset value, 
the higher the value of the company. In MRC’s case, they owe 
more than they are worth.

Per Audit as of 6/30/2015

*Note: This Net Position does not include the 
City Hall contribution, if it did, add $755k to 
bring total Net Position to $2.3 Million

 Per Oregon constitutional requirements for an Urban Renewal 
District, it is permitted to operate with a Negative net position. 

 The theory for operating a URD is that a URD would borrow debt, 
then pay back over time via tax income (i.e. TIF – Tax Increment 
Financing)

 Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as useful 
indicators of whether the financial assets of the MRC are improving 
or deteriorating. 

 The life of the URD district should guide the rate of return on 
investments (or balance of TIF projects to pay off the debt). 
o Based on current debt balances, the life of the district will be through year 

2037. The original goal of the district was to have a life of 2027 (per page 6 of the 2002 
Urban Renewal Plan).

Per GASB Stmt 63: Summary of Net Position Definition http://www.gasb.org/jsp/GASB/GASBContent_C/UsersArticlePage&cid=1176158753218



2/24/2016

4

 By June 30, 2016, it is anticipated Net Position will be around negative 
($1.846 million). 

o This is up from prior year due to the update of the urban renewal plan on increasing debt 
through the line of credit borrowing. 

 Current debt is a 22 year payback, anticipated to be paid off by year 
2037-38.

o Current coverage ratio is 1.3, however with line of credit termed out and paid we drop to 
coverage ratio of 1.017. Anything below 1.25 is below industry standard.

 If the MRC had to only meet it’s contractual obligations and not fund 
anything else, it would be able to meet those as of today with the 
consistent revenue of $340k coming in each year.  

FYE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Resources
Beginning fund balance 46,248.00$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
TIF revenue 347,447.00$         355,735.00$         344,367.00$         356,495.00$         386,759.00$         417,959.00$         450,035.00$         

Total resources 393,695.00$         355,735.00$         344,367.00$         356,495.00$         386,759.00$         417,959.00$         450,035.00$         

Expenditures
City Hall obligation 75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          
Outstanding long-term debt 181,500.00$         179,950.00$         181,700.00$         181,700.00$         190,000.00$         190,000.00$         190,000.00$         
Line of credit 5,800.00$            7,500.00$            7,500.00$            10,500.00$          3,000.00$            6,000.00$            10,500.00$          
Pay as you go 131,395.00$         93,285.00$          80,167.00$          61,210.00$          90,674.00$          118,874.00$         146,450.00$         

Total expenditures 393,695.00$         355,735.00$         344,367.00$         356,495.00$         386,759.00$         417,959.00$         450,035.00$         

D/S Coverage Ratio 132% 136% 130% 121% 131% 140% 148%

Ending fund balance -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PROJECT FUND
Resources
Beginning fund balance -$                    65,647.00$          69,932.00$          90,001.76$          90,005.58$          98,240.27$          103,458.17$         
Pay as you go 131,395.00$         93,285.00$          80,167.00$          61,210.00$          90,674.00$          118,874.00$         146,450.00$         
Line of Credit 250,000.00$         -$                    100,000.00$         100,000.00$         100,000.00$         150,000.00$         150,000.00$         
Long-term debt -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
Interest earnings 500.00$               500.00$               350.00$               450.00$               450.00$               491.00$               517.00$               
Other

Total resources 381,895.00$         159,432.00$         250,449.00$         251,661.76$         281,129.58$         367,605.27$         400,425.17$         

Expenditures
Materials and services 66,248.00$          64,500.00$          60,447.24$          61,656.18$          62,889.31$          64,147.09$          65,000.00$          
Economic Development 150,000.00$         25,000.00$          
Theater and Crosskey 100,000.00$         
Other -$                    100,000.00$         100,000.00$         120,000.00$         200,000.00$         230,000.00$         

Total Expenditures 316,248.00$         89,500.00$          160,447.24$         161,656.18$         182,889.31$         264,147.09$         295,000.00$         

Ending CASH Balance 65,647.00$          69,932.00$          90,001.76$          90,005.58$          98,240.27$          103,458.17$         105,425.17$         



2/24/2016

5

FYE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Resources
Beginning fund balance 46,248.00$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
TIF revenue 347,447.00$         355,735.00$         344,367.00$         371,218.00$         422,606.00$         461,981.00$         495,377.00$         
Interest earnings -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
Interfund transfers -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total resources 393,695.00$         355,735.00$         344,367.00$         371,218.00$         422,606.00$         461,981.00$         495,377.00$         

Expenditures
City Hall obligation 75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          75,000.00$          
Outstanding long-term debt 181,500.00$         179,950.00$         181,700.00$         181,700.00$         190,000.00$         190,000.00$         190,000.00$         
Line of credit 5,800.00$            11,250.00$          11,250.00$          16,710.00$          2,100.00$            5,100.00$            9,600.00$            
New debt - 2019 44,695.00$          44,695.00$          44,695.00$          44,695.00$          
Pay as you go 131,395.00$         89,535.00$          76,417.00$          53,113.00$          110,811.00$         147,186.00$         176,082.00$         

Total expenditures 393,695.00$         355,735.00$         344,367.00$         371,218.00$         422,606.00$         461,981.00$         495,377.00$         

D/S Coverage Ratio 132% 134% 129% 117% 136% 147% 155%

Ending cash balance -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

PROJECT FUND
Resources
Beginning fund balance -$                    65,647.00$          71,182.00$          67,936.76$          64,171.58$          112,414.27$         146,015.17$         
Pay as you go 131,395.00$         89,535.00$          76,417.00$          53,113.00$          110,811.00$         147,186.00$         176,082.00$         
Line of Credit 250,000.00$         125,000.00$         182,000.00$         70,000.00$          100,000.00$         150,000.00$         150,000.00$         
Long-term debt -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
Interest earnings 500.00$               500.00$               356.00$               340.00$               321.00$               562.00$               730.00$               
Other

Total resources 381,895.00$         280,682.00$         329,955.00$         191,389.76$         275,303.58$         410,162.27$         472,827.17$         

Expenditures
Materials and services 66,248.00$          69,500.00$          60,447.24$          61,656.18$          62,889.31$          64,147.09$          65,000.00$          
Economic Development 150,000.00$         
Theater and Crosskey 100,000.00$         
Brewery 65,562.00$          
Grocery 140,000.00$         
General Merchandise Store 201,571.00$         
Other -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    100,000.00$         200,000.00$         200,000.00$         

Total Expenditures 316,248.00$         209,500.00$         262,018.24$         127,218.18$         162,889.31$         264,147.09$         265,000.00$         

Ending Cash Balance 65,647.00$          71,182.00$          67,936.76$          64,171.58$          112,414.27$         146,015.17$         207,827.17$         

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Baseline Scenario

Development Scenario

Reflected as Ending Cash Balances



2/24/2016

6

0

200000

400000

600000

800000

1000000

1200000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Line of Credit - Development
Line of Credit - Baseline



2/24/2016

7

1. Any significant investment in projects in the short-term will 
require borrowing.

2. The District should not borrow without certainty that 
investments will stimulate higher TIF

3. Even with borrowing, funds are limited to about $125,000 
(assuming line of credit is optional to be expanded with 
City concurrence)

4. The Long-term forecast is better, with increasing revenue 
after FYE 2020.

 It’s the “health” of the MRC (ie. Equity) that illustrates what the MRC 
is worth. 

 Ending Cash Balance and Fund Balance do not mean the same 
thing…they are different.
o Ending Cash Balance is a component of Fund Balance.

 Many jurisdictions establish fund balance policies that they try to hit 
certain targets from year to year to ensure they are gaining in an 
organization, or maintaining a certain balance.
o Staff is currently researching fund balance thresholds from other jurisdictions to 

see if they is applicable to implement within the MRC. 



2/24/2016

8

Net 
Position

Cash



























































 

 
Page -1- Request for Madras Redevelopment Commission Action 

CITY OF MADRAS 
Request for Madras Redevelopment Commission Action 

  
 
Date Submitted:    February 24, 2016 
 
Agenda Date Requested: March 2, 2016 
 
To:        Madras Redevelopment Commission 
 
From:       Nicholas Snead, Community Development Director 
 
Subject:      Discussion on Contract Services for Commercial Development 

Recruitment Services. 
 
 
TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One) 
 

[         ]    Resolution           [        ]     Ordinance 
 

[       ]     Formal Action/Motion        [   X   ]     Other 
 
[  ] No Action - Report Only 
    

 
OVERVIEW: 
On February 3, 2016, the Madras Redevelopment Commission (MRC) approved the Urban Renewal 
Action Plan. Within the Plan there are two specific projects that the MRC is to complete to execute.  
Project A—Recruit General Merchandise Store calls for the MRC to, “consider working with a 
reputable retail recruiter to market the URD with potential retail brands and guide the MRC through 
this process.” Additionally, Project B—Recruit Brewery calls for the MRC to recruit a brewery to 
downtown Madras. Staff would like to discuss with the MRC options for obtaining services to assist 
the MRC recruit a developer for a general merchandise store, brewery, or any other type of new 
development within the Urban Renewal District. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Types of Commercial Development 
There are generally two types of commercial development that will occur in the Urban Renewal 
District in the future. The first type of development will be from national retailers and restaurateurs. 
These retailers and restaurateurs tend to make development decisions when the local market and 
demographic conditions meet their criteria. An example of this would be Fred Meyer, where they 
would likely be interested in opening a store in Madras when there are 20,000 or more households 
in Madras. The second type of commercial development is local or regional retailers and 
restaurateurs. These developers will tend to be local or regional property owners and or investors. 
They will tend to develop commercial and retail and restaurants uses that will not be associated with 
a national retailer or franchise. 
 
 



 

 
Page -2- Request for Madras Redevelopment Commission Action 

Staff Limitations and Needs 
The City Administrator, Public Works Director, and Community Development Director works hard as 
a team and collaborate on commercial development leads to identify the permitting process, 
development standards, development fees, and resolve any problems to assist the developer. This 
effort tends to be reactive, where staff receives a lead on a development and then staff works 
exhaustively to assist the developer. The weakness in this strategy is that it is reactive. Staff 
generally is only able to assist property owners, developers, realtor and the like when they are 
notified of a potential development. Additionally, staff has additional responsibilities that prevent 
them from putting forth the necessary efforts to recruit commercial development within the Urban 
Renewal District (i.e. proactive recruitment efforts). At this time staff cannot quantify how many leads 
or development opportunities were missed because of the current reactive recruitment strategy. 
However, it is staff’s opinion that moving forward, if there is a commercial development lead that is 
not built, that the MRC would like to know why and be assured that staff and the MRC put forth their 
best effort to assist the development. In response to Projects A and B in the Urban Renewal Action 
Plan and the limitations to the current reactive recruitment strategy, there is a need for professional 
services to assist the MRC to recruit commercial development within the Urban Renewal District.  
 
Options 
Staff has determined that there are three different options (Table 1, pg. 3) for the MRC to consider 
for obtaining assistance with recruiting commercial development within the District.  
  
Option A—Buxton Company: 
Staff was able to contact the Buxton Company and discuss the MRC’s needs and the cost structure 
for services. The Buxton Company would provide contact information to national retailers, 
restaurants, and franchises that would not be as easy to obtain otherwise. However, the Buxton 
Company would not assist the MRC in contacting national retailers. City staff would ultimately be 
responsible for contacting national retailers and discussing development options in Madras. Staff 
has concern for their availability to contact national retailers and put forth the necessary effort 
required to successfully recruit a national retail development. This option is the highest cost of the 
three options.  
 
Option B—The Retail Research Group: 
Staff was not able to contact the Retail Research Group and discuss the MRC’s needs and the cost 
structure for services. This option would only provide additional market information and data of 
which staff would use when talking with national retailers. The Retail Research Group would not 
assist the MRC in contacting national retailers. City staff would ultimately be responsible for 
contacting national retailers and discussing development options in Madras. Staff has concern for 
their availability to contact national retailers and put forth the necessary effort required to 
successfully recruit a national retail development. This option is the second highest cost of the three 
options. 
 
Option C—Local Recruitment Specialist: 
Staff reached out to a local business that has experience recruiting non-national retailers, 
restaurants, and franchise to determine if it would be advantageous for the MRC to have local 
business assist the MRC in recruiting commercial development to the District. The conclusion was 
made that a local business likely wouldn’t have the contacts of national retailers. However that a 
local business assisting the MRC would know local property owners, realtors, investors, developers, 
and financial institutions that would very likely need to be involved in recruiting new development to 
the District. As such, the MRC should consider this option. Comparably, this option is the least 
expense of the three options. 



 

 
Page -3- Request for Madras Redevelopment Commission Action 

Table 1. Commercial Development Recruitment Services Options 

Option Description Pros Cons 
Est. 
Cost 

Procurement 
Method 

Option A – 
 
 
 BUXTON 
COMPANY 

-  Contract with 
firm that 
specializes in 
recruitment of 
national 
retailers, 
restaurants, 
franchises, etc. 

- 1-3 year service 
contract 

- Firm has contacts with 
5,000+ national retailers 
& commercial 
businesses. 

- Will know market, 
demographic, and site 
characteristics needed 
for national retailers. 

- Will provide contact with 
each national retailer 
about development 
opportunities. 

- Small Rural community 
experience. 

 
 

- Will not know local 
property owners, 
realtors, financial 
institutions. 

- Limited to national 
retailers. 

- Worked with 2 Oregon 
cities 

- High cost for service 
- Cannot guarantee a 

successful recruitment 
- They don’t call national 

retailers. 
- City staff would need to 

call/recruit national 
retailers. 

$50,000 
per year 

Professional 
Services 
Agreement 

Option B –  
 
THE RETAIL 
RESEARCH 
GROUP 

- Contract with 
firm for 
additional 
market analysis 
and data to 
assist with a 
separate 
recruitment of 
grocery, drug 
store, general 
merchandisers. 

- Specializes in grocery, 
drug store, general 
merchandisers. 

- Provides market 
analysis & revenue 
projections for 
commercial 
developments. 

 

- Just provide market 
analysis and data. 

- Doesn’t have contacts 
with national retailers. 

- City would need to 
contact and recruit 
national retailers. 

- Is not involved in actual 
recruitment efforts—
only preparing data for 
City to use when 
recruiting. 

$6,800-
12,000 

Professional 
Services 
Agreement 

Option C –  
 
LOCAL 
RECRUITMENT 
SPECIALIST 

- Contract with 
local firm that 
specializes in 
regional or local 
retail and 
commercial 
development 

- Specializes in regional 
and local retail & 
commercial 
development. 

- Understanding of 
regional & local market, 
development, & finance 
conditions trends, and 
needs.  

- Would work with 
property owners, 
realtors, investors, 
financial institutions, & 
developers to recruit 
development. 

- Has redevelopment and 
development. 

- Would be able to 
advocate more 
effectively to property 
owners, investors, 
realtors, and 
developers.  

- Doesn’t have specific 
contacts with national 
retailers, restaurants, 
franchises, etc. 

$5,000 
per year 

Professional 
Services 
Agreement 

 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the MRC pursue Option C and direct staff to solicit businesses for MRC 
consideration at a future meeting. This would result in a Professional Services Agreement between 
the MRC and a business for Commercial Development Recruitment services. 



 

 
Page -4- Request for Madras Redevelopment Commission Action 

SUMMARY: 
 

A. Fiscal Impact: None. 
 
B. Funding Source: No expenses are proposed at this time. 
 
D. Supporting Documentation: 
 
 Attachment A: Project Sheet A—Recruit General Merchandise Store 
 Attachment B: Project Sheet B—Recruit Brewery 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
That the MRC pursue Option C—Local Recruitment Specialist and direct staff to begin soliciting 
businesses for MRC consideration at a future meeting. 
 



32    Madras Urban Renewal Action Plan        

DETAILED PROJECT SHEETS  
 

A Recruit General Merchandise Store  

Why: Rationale Who: Lead 

The need for better general merchandise retail opportunities was the most frequently retail cited need 
among residents and stakeholders. General merchandise includes any non-food or non-grocery products, 
such as clothing, outdoor gear, cosmetics, jewelry, and other sundries. In a survey of area employees, a 
third of employees living outside of the city cited the lack of as a reason why they did not choose to live in 
Madras. In addition, the commercial development opportunities analysis showed an untapped demand for a 
general merchandiser. Recruiting a general merchandiser to Madras could help to catalyze other 
development along the north and south corridors.  

MRC 

What: Project Description 

The MRC will refine and implement a comprehensive strategy to attract a general merchandiser or a store (like Fred Meyer) that 
offers general merchandise goods in addition to grocery products. Beginning with the information in the Commercial Development 
Opportunities Analysis, the City will create a refined “recruitment package” that can serve as a starting point in marketing 
available sites to potential tenants and developers. The recruitment package will consolidate data regarding market demand, 
incentives, development processes and permitting information, and the benefits of Madras in one location. This analysis will help 
the MRC prepare for conversations with potential general merchandise partners on future deal structures and entitlement issues. 
The MRC will then target outreach to appropriate retailers.   

How: 
Implementation 
Steps 

Create Recruitment Package.  
The Commercial Development Opportunities Analysis provides much of the following information, but 
some additional research may be needed: 
§ Market demand:  

- Definition of trade area  
- Demographics (population, households, average HH income, median HH income, growth trends) 

compared with the retailers’ site & demographic criteria 
§ Competitive advantages: 

- Retail leakage information on unmet retail demand within specific categories  
- Possible capture rate from tourists and employees 
- Competitor analysis  

§ Retailer perspective:  
- How Madras meets the retailer’s business needs and wants 
- Data on specific consumer preferences 

§ Incentives available: 
- The materials should describe the type of assistance that could be available, including low-interest 

or forgivable loans, infrastructure assistance, or grants. This funding should be tied to the 
investment criteria in the plan to ensure that the proposed development meets community needs. 

§ Development sites: Each retailer will have a specific set of site requirements, but the MRC can 
bring information from this action plan that helps to identify sites that would be suitable for new retail. 
A 20,000 square foot general merchandiser will be looking for a site that is two to three acres in size. 

 
Target outreach to appropriate retailers.  
§ Consider attendance at International Council of Shopping Centers events. The MRC can bring 

summarized, refined findings of the information in a set of materials for prospective investors. More 
information on approaching these types of conventions can be found at icsc.org  

§ Identify attraction/recruitment specialist. The MRC should consider working with a reputable retail 
recruiter to market the URD with potential retail brands and guide the MRC through this process. 



 

  Project Sheets    33      

Examples of retail site analyst firms include Retail Research Group, the Retail Coach, and Buxton 
Co.  

§ Support any existing retailers that are ready to expand their lines of business or size of their 
stores. 

Identify opportunities for Public-Private Partnerships 
Using the development toolkit identified in Project C, identify possible sites, and work with property 
owners to make sites available when an interested retailer is ready to invest. Market these sites to 
brokers and others. 

When: Phasing Short-term, high priority 

Partners Chamber 

Funding 
Considerations 

Staff time for outreach  
Consulting contract with recruiter and to produce marketing materials (if done in house, then the cost is 
just staff time and printing costs) 
Incentives package for individual developments  

  



34    Madras Urban Renewal Action Plan        

B Recruit Brewery  

Why: Rationale Who: Lead 

The recruitment of a brewery to downtown Madras was a high priority among survey respondents and could help 
to spark other investments in downtown by capturing business from visitors. At the same time, a larger production 
brewery facility would create jobs in Madras that would help to recruit new residents to support other District 
businesses.  

MRC 

What: Project Description 

The MRC will work to recruit a brewery to Madras our unique assets. There are generally two categories of breweries: small 
production facilities or brewpubs (under 5,000 square feet and around $700,000 in investment) and larger production facilities 
(around 10,000 square feet, and $2 million in investment).1  

How: 
Implementation 
Steps 

§ Issue identification and initial connections.  
- Hold meetings with Central Oregon brewery representatives to understand needs.  
- Identify and work with possible brokers or consultants to position Madras. There are 

consultants that work exclusively with breweries to help to identify potential growth opportunities 
and manage the brewery startup process. The MRC could consider working with one of these 
consultants to identify potential brewery partners and market the MRC’s offerings.  

- Explore partnerships with the agricultural community, including the Mecca Grade Malt 
operation north of Madras.  

- Based on these conversations, identify sites that meet brewery requirements. These include, 
truck loading, a site with topography for gravity flow, and adequate power and water supply.  

§ Create brewery recruitment collateral. Develop summary of Madras’ advantages for a brewery, 
including: high quality water, lack of competition, low cost of doing business, quality of life, through 
traffic, existing businesses (including Malt Grade’s estate malt operation). The material should 
include the following:  
- Letter of introduction including compelling reasons why downtown Madras makes sense for their 

business. 
- General information and photos of the community highlighting its assets. 
- Current downtown market position and goal statements.  
- New developments demonstrating public and private investment downtown. 
- Trade area geographic definition and demographic and lifestyle data. 
- Non-resident consumer data (including daytime population and tourism visitation). 
- Major employers and institutions. 
- Vehicle and pedestrian traffic volume. 
- Mix of existing retail, service, dining, housing, office, and lodging in the market area. 
- Press coverage and testimonials highlighting success stories. 
- Downtown opportunity sites (based on information gathered in the first step). 
- Summary of city and other public incentives and other business assistance available in the 

business district. 
§ Identify leads. Use the information above to contact emerging entrepreneurs, existing businesses, 

and brewery consultants. In addition, the MRC should consider hiring a brewery consultant to contact 
successful existing breweries in other locations that may be interested in expanding or even 
relocating to new locations to take advantage of potential new markets – or, know of former 
employees, business partners, or other potential recruited individuals who would be interested in a 

                                                                    
1 Conversation with Tomas Sluiter, Brewery Consultant.  



 

  Project Sheets    35      

starting another brewery. 
§ Send letters of introduction and make recruitment calls. Document these calls meticulously.  
§ As opportunities arise, identify suitable sites, work with property owners to make sites 

available, and negotiate a public-private partnership. 

When: Phasing Short-term 

Partners Chamber, businesses, ag community, investors 

Funding 
Considerations 

Marketing materials  
Staff time for outreach 
Incentives package for individual developments to be determined 

 
  


	March 2, 2016 MRC Meeting Agenda
	November 14, 2015 MRC Meeting Minutes
	December 9, 0215 MRC Meeting Minutes
	January 20, 2016 MRC Meeting Minutes
	March 2016 Vouchers
	MRC Annual ORS 457.460 Report, Detailing the Financial Activity of the Urban Renewal District
	MRC Fund Balance Presentation
	Authorization of Intent to Proceed wiht Purchasing Flowers From Fessler Nursery and Brackets for Light Poles from North Coast Electric Company for the US Highway 97/J Street Decorative Street Lights
	Consideration of MRC and Davide Potter Urbann Renewal Line of Credit Loan Agreement
	Line of Credit Loan Agreement
	Line of Credit Promissory Note
	Trust Deed, Assignment of Leases and Rents, and Fixture Filing
	Discussion on Contract Services for Commercial Development Recruitment Services
	Staff Report
	Project A--Recruit General Merchandise Store
	Project B--Recruit Brewery





